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Auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate
Development Company - “CIRA Educational” “S.A.E” and its
subsidiaries

ﬁébon‘ on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cairo for Investment and
Real Estate Development “CIRA Educational” “S.A.E” (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
((collectively, the "Group") which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31
August 2023 and the consolidated statements of profit or loss, other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other notes.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards (EASs) and in light of the prevailing
Egyptian laws. Management responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management responsibility
also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in light of the
prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require compliance with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies and
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ezzeldeen, Diab & Co., Public Accountants
Plot no 211, Second Sector, City Center, New Cairo 11835, Egypt, PO Box 170 New Cairo
T: +20 2 2759 7700, F: +20 2 2759 7711, WWW.pwc.com
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Auditor’s report (continued)
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development Company
“CIRA Educational” “S.A.E” and its subsidiaries at 31 August 2023, and its financial performance
and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards
and in light of relevant Egyptian laws and regulations.

f Accountants & Auditors
of Certified Public Accountants

20 November 2023
Cairo




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -

“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of financial position - As at 31 August 2023

(All amounts are shown in EGP)

Assets

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Work in progress

Investments in associates

Goodwill

Right-of-use assets - Leases

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Work in progress

Inventory

Debtors and other debit balances

Cash on hand and balances at banks

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity attributable to the shareholders of the
Parent Company

Paid-up capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to shareholders of the
Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans and credit facilities - Non-current portion
Ijarah Sukuk- non-current portion

Deferred tax liabilities

Securitizations - future financial equity
Creditors and other credit balances - non-current
portion

Leases liability - non-current portion

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions

Ijarah Sukuk- non-current portion

Creditors and other credit balances- current portion
Advance revenues

Current income tax liabilities

Loans and credit facilities - current portion
Leases liability - current portion

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note 31 August 2023 31 August 2022
6 6,217,839,929 5,570,092,804
(i 21,581,907 164,317,426
8 241,274,499 196,578,530
31 32,381,699 28,975,049
32 7,811,928 18,263,419

6,520,889,962 5,978,227,228

7 241,644,255 -
10 17,533,980 16,349,926
11 619,588,480 457,787,394
12 498,428,158 178,404,068
1,377,194,873 652,541,388

7,898,084,835 6,630,768,616

13 233,116,130 233,116,130
14 200,030,606 193,091,736
934,140,770 1,002,278,439

1,367,287,506 1,428,486,305

30 259,841,324 135,998,396
1,627,128,830 1,564,484,701

15 868,628,626 1,137,447,664
16 413,503,616 531,554,701
21 33,929,957 36,553,438
17 784,895,575 -
1K 1,376,273,586 1,548,620,037
33 4,260,219 2,544,143
3,481,491,579 3,256,719,983

22 57,307,408 84,637,690
16 118,051,085 58,051,085
18 1,077,914,309 740,543,741
19 841,655,159 340,975,051
20 185,379,286 164,501,879
15 506,495,545 404,226,773
33 2,661,634 16,627,713
2,789,464,426 1,809,563,932

6,270,956,005 5,066,283,915

7,898,084,835 6,630,768,616

- The accompanying notes on pages (8) to (66) form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

Al A
Mr./ Mohamed houly
Chief Finan¢ial Officer

- Audito‘ s report attached
20 November; 2023




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of profit or loss - For the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts are shown in EGP)

Operating income
Operating cost

General and administrative expenses
Provisions formed
Other revenues

The Group’s net share in profits / losses of
associates

Profits generated from operations
Finance costs- net

Profit before taxes

Current income tax

Deferred taxes

Profit for the year

Distributed as follows:
Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Note 31 August 2023 31 August 2022
2 2,343,011,087 1,717,358.172
24 (1,314,120,367) (835,816,663)

1,028,890,720 881,541,509

25 (301,080,648) (213,445,556)
22 (12,130,271) (13,105,665)
21 13,670,092 9,339,350
8 (24,506,035) -
704,843,858 664,329,638

28 (400,372,222) (126,779,994)
304,471,636 537,549,644

20 (184,896,603) (162,266,126)
2l 2,974,033 (1,379,074)
122,549,066 373,904,444

125,363,095 370,769,124

30 (2,814,029) 3,135,320
122,549,066 373,904,444

34 0,19 0,54

- The accompanying notes on pages (8) to (66) form an integral part of the consolidated financial

statements.




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income - For the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts are shown in EGP) Note 31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Profit for the year 122,549,066 373,904,444
Other comprehensive income items

Items that can be reclassified to the

statement of profit and loss

Currency differences resulting from foreign

transactions translation 30 9,673,588 1,215,933

Total comprehensive income for the year 132,222,654 375,120,377

Distributed as follows:

Shareholders of the Parent Company 133,101,965 371,741,870
Non-controlling interests (879,311) 3,378,507
132,222,654 375,120,377

- The accompanying notes on pages (8) to (66) form an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -

“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of cash flows - For the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts are shown in EGP) Note 31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxes 304,471,636 537,549,644
Amendments:

Fixed assets depreciation 6 195,698,143 136,139,942
Interest expenses 28 464,867,320 139,977,406
Amortisation of sukuk issuance cost 28 1,948,915 1,948,915
Amortisation of securitizations cost - future financial 28

equity 2,253,505 -
Interests income 28 (55,914,788) (11,784,315)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 26 15,836,928 11,199,375
Expected credit losses - debtors and other debit balances 25 11,329,258 16,886,495
Provisions formed 22 12,130,271 13,105,665
The Group’s net share in profits / losses of associates 8 24,506,035 -
Leases interest expenses 24 2,588,709 2,024,228
Cash flows before change in assets and liabilities 938,055,379 829,652,123
Changes in current assets and liabilities

Inventory (1,184,054) (3,333,594)
Debtors and other debit balances (214,418,003) 19,941,019
Payments for works in progress (98,908,737) (142,735,518)
Creditors and other credit balances and advance

revenues 627,598,574 1,137,285,736
Utilized provisions 22 (41,660,553) (17,395,232)
Income taxes paid 20 (164,019,196) (128,145,595)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,087,123,963

1,712,664,171

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of fixed assets “ (306,274,188)

(198,051,043)

Interests received N 55,914,788 11,784,315
Payments for projects in progress o ot \"H (537,171,080) (1,938,476,613)
Paid under investments in associates _,\_»j O o€ (32,270,442) (93,723,906)
Net cash flows used in mvestmg actlvmgs, f r (819,800,922) (2,218,467,247)

Leases payments G 33 (20,224,149)

(14,132,040)

Proceeds from loans and bank fa0111t1es i 80,757,805 935,682,680
Paid from loans and bank facilities (247,308,071) (223,631,060)
Paid for securitizations cost - future financial equity (17,357,930) -
Paid finance costs (434,253,989) (139,977,406)
Paid for Ijarah Sukuk (60,000,000) -
Proceeds from securitizations - future financial equity 800,000,000 -
Capital increase 140,150,000 20,000,000
Dividends paid (198,736,205) (131,383,575)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 43,027,461 446,558,599
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the

year 310,350,502 (59,244,477)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 167,020,089 225,048,633
Currency differences resulting from foreign transactions

translation 9,673,588 1,215,933
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 487,044,179 167,020,089

- The accompanying notes on pages (8) to (66) form an integral part of the consolidated financial

statements
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

1. Introduction

Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development (the Parent Company) was established under a
preliminary contract dated 15 March 1992 which was ratified on 17 August 1992 under ratification
minutes No. 1978 (d) of 1992 at Real Estate Registration Office in Nasr City. The Company is
registered under the commercial register number 273431 dated 22 August 1992.

The Parent Company's headquarter is located in 36 Sheikh Ahmed El Sawy Street - Nasr City- Cairo.

The Parent Company was founded for the purpose of: Construction, foundation and management of
educational institutions in accordance with the applicable laws and decrees, administrative housing,
below average housing, medical institutions, trade of medical tools and hospitals equipment,
providing petroleum services, buying and selling and the division of land, taking into account the
provisions of law No. 143 of 1981, import and export, sale and purchase of residential apartments,
administrative units and real estate, without prejudice to the decision of the Minister of Economy and
Foreign Trade No. 204 for 1991. The Parent Company may have interests or participate in any means
with companies having similar activities or which may assist it in achieving its purpose in Eg gypt or
abroad. The Parent Company may also have the right to be merged, acquired, or annexed to the above
mentioned entities under the provisions of law and its executive regulations. The activity of
establishing real estates, private and general public contracting and commercial agencies from
Egyptian and foreign companies has been added to the purpose of the Group.

The main shareholder of the Parent Company is Social Impact Capital “Ltd.” owning of 51,22%.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Company's management on 20
November 2023.

2. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the conselidated financial statements
are summarised below. They were applied consistently over the financial years unless otherwise
stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian Accounting
Standards (EAS) and the relevant laws. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

the basis of the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale financial investments, which
are measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Eg gyptian Accounting
Standards (EASs) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement when applying the Group’s accounting policies. Note (4)

clarifies the most significant accounting estimates and judgements applied for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards apply for the topics not covered by the EASs until the
issuance of a related EAS discussing such topics.




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
22 Basis of consolidation

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

1 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has the right to, variable returns from its contribution in the investee
entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

3 Based upon the Presidential Decree No. 117 of 2013, the Parent Company established Badr
University. Based on the same decree, the Group as the Founder is entitled to surplus
revenues after deduction of expenses as determinable by the Board of Trustees of the
University.

3. Based upon the Presidential Decree No. 444 of 2021, the Parent Company established Badr
Assiut University. Based on the same decree, the Group as the Founder is entitled to surplus
revenues after deduction of expenses as determinable by the Board of Trustees of the
University.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the following subsidiaries:

Ownership %

Country of
incorporation 2023 2022

Cairo for Educational Services Company Egypt 69,4% 69,4%
Upper Egypt Educational Services Company Egypt 99% 99%
Egyptian Educational Systems Company Egypt 100% 100%
Global Educational Technologies Company Egypt 79,5% 79,5%
Cairo Egypt for Educational Premises Company Egypt 59,95% 59,95%
Futures and Nations Company Egypt 50% 50%
EMCO for Systems and Computers Company Egypt 82,5% 82,5%
Egyptian Schools Company Egypt 61% 61%
Educational Systems International Company Egypt 80% 80%
Badr University Egypt 100% 100%
Badr Assiut University Egypt 100% -
CIRA Talent Company for Sports Services and Talent

Development Egypt 99% 99%
Cosmic Company for Educational Investment Egypt 65% -
Cosmic Company for Educational Services Egypt 38% -
Edu Hive Company Egypt 42%

Star Light Company UAE .~ .5 80% 80%
Al-Ahly CIRA Egypt \O' '51% 51%




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Acquisition method

The Group applies the acquisition method when processing each business combination.

The consideration transferred in a business combination to acquire a subsidiary is measured at the fair
value accounted for as the fair values of the assets transferred and the liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former shareholders of the acquiree and the equity issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from arrangements related to a
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities, and contingent liabilities are
measured at their fair value at the acquisition date. In any business combination, the Group measures
any non-controlling interests in the subsidiary at the proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
subsidiary’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the Group re-measures the previously held equity in
the acquiree at fair value at the acquisition date. Any gain or loss arising from re-measurement is
recognised within other comprehensive income items.

Inter-company assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows related to transactions
between the Group entities are derecognised. When necessary, subsidiaries’ financial statements shall
be adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Changes in ownership interests held within controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not lead to loss of control as
transactions with equity holders in the Group. The adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests is the result of the change in ownership shares to reflect their
relative shares in the subsidiary. Any difference between the adjustment amount to the non-
controlling interest and any consideration paid or received is recognized in a separate reserve within
equity of the Parent Company.

When the Group discontinues a consolidation or equity account of an investment due to a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the subsequent accounting purposes of the profit share as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. Furthermore, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly dlsposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts prev10usly reaogmzed in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. g

(182}

-10 -



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, the Group recognises any retained investment in the entity
that was a subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the resultant change
recognised as profit or loss attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company.

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value at the date of
acquisition of the Group’s equity previously held at the acquiree over the net values of the identifiable
acquired assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition. If the consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the date of acquisition fair value of the
Group’s equity previously held at the acquiree is less than the net of the identifiable acquired assets,
liabilities, and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, the Group recognises the gain
resulting from profits and losses at the date of acquisition and the gains are attributed to the Group.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored inside the Group at the operating segments level.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they may be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment loss is
recognised when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the fair value of the asset less de-recognition costs and value in use, whichever is higher.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows, that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that have suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(e) Measurement period

The measurement period is the period required for the Group to obtain the information needed for
initial measurement of the items resulting from the acquisition of the subsidiaries. Such period shall
not exceed one year from the date of acquisition. In case the Group obtains.new {iiformation during

the measurement period relative to the acquisition, the amounts recoomsegl at the pa& of acquisition
shall be retrospectively amended. 5

=1l.=




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Generally,
this is the case when the Group owns directly or indirectly between 20% and 50% of the voting rights
in the associates.

(a) Equity method

The equity method is used in accounting for investments in associates, so that the investment is
recognised at the cost of its acquisition, provided that such cost is modified after the date of
acquisition according to the changes occurring during post-acquisition period on the Group's share in
the net assets of the associates. The Group's profit or loss includes its share in the associate's profit or
loss. The consolidated statement of other comprehensive income includes the Group's share in the
associate's other comprehensive income. This is in exchange for adjusting the carrying amount of the
investment by the Group's total share in the changes in equity after the date of acquisition.

(b) Changes in equity

If the Group's equity in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the reduction rate of the amount of profit or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profits or losses when relevant assets or liabilities are
disposed of.

(c) Losses of associates

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in these associates, the
Group ceases to recognise its share in additional losses. Once the Group's share is reduced to zero,
further losses and corresponding liability are recognised but only to the extent of incurred legal or
constructive obligations by the Group or payments made on behalf of associates. When those
companies realise profits in subsequent periods, the Group resumes to recognise its share in those
profits, only after its share of profits equals its share in unrecognised losses.

(d) Transactions with associates

In relation to profits or losses resulting from transactions between the Group- and the assoc1ate only
the portion not owned by the Group is recognised. ‘ i :

(e) Goodwill arising from investment in associates

iax \"X”“ .

The excess of the total consideration transferred over the Group's share in fhe. net falr value for the

acquired determinable assets and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill.

The goodwill resulting from contribution in associates is recognised within the cost of investment in
associates net of the accumulated impairment losses in the investment value of associates and shall
not be recognised separately. The impairment of goodwill in associates is not separately tested, it is
rather tested in the carrying amount of the investment as a whole- as a separate asset- by comparing
its carrying amount with the recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in this case is not
allocated on any asset. Therefore, any reverse settlement of the impairment losses will be recognised
to the extent in which the recoverable amount subsequently increases, provided it does not exceed the
impairment losses previously recognised.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

23 New and amended Egyptian Accounting Standards

The Minister of Investment issued Resolution No. 883 of 2023 on 6 March 2023, amending some
provisions of the EASs, which include some new accounting standards and amendments to some
existing standards. These amendments were published in the Accounting Standards in the Official
Gazette on 6 March 2023. The Group has assessed the impact of applying these amendments, and
there is no material impact from these new issues and amendments on the Group and its activities
during the financial period ended 31 August 2023. The significant amendments are summarised as
follows, which were applied for financial periods commencing on or after 31 August 2024:

Standard name

Amendment summary

Date of application

EAS (10) “fixed assets and their

depreciations”

EAS (23) - “Intangible assets”

“Standard scope”

The scope of the standards has
been amended to include
"bearer plants"

“Measurement”

- An option to apply the re-
evaluation model for fixed
assets has been added

The fair value is determined by
an estimation made by experts
specialized in evaluating and
appraising among those
registered in a register
designated for that in the
Financial Regulatory Authority.
- Paragraph 20/a has been
added, according to which the
entity shall recognise the
proceeds from the sale of any
output produced during the
process of bringing the fixed
asset to the condition necessary
for it to be operable in the
manner intended by the
Management within the profits
or losses.

“Disclosures”

Some new disclosures have
been added to the re-evaluation
model.

“Standard scope”

The scope of the intangible
assets standard has been
amended to include rights held

<3

The entity applies the
amendments to add the option
to use the re-evaluation model
on the financial periods
commencing on or after 1
January 2023 retrospectively,
with the recognition of the
accumulated impact of applying
the re-evaluation model initially
by adding it to the re-evaluation
surplus account within equity at
the beginning of the financial
period in which the Group
applies this model for the first
time.

The entity applies the
amendments to add the option
to use the re-evaluation model
on the financial periods
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Standard name

Amendment summary

Date of application

Amendments of EAS No. (10)
“Fixed Assets” and EAS No.
(23) “Intangible Assets” related
to depreciation and amortization

EAS No. (49) "Leases"

by the lessee under licensing
agreements for items such as
animated films, video
recordings, plays, manuscripts,
patents, and copyrights.

“Measurement”

- An option to apply the re-
evaluation model for intangible
assets has been added

- The fair value is determined
by an estimation made by
experts specialized in evaluating
and appraising among those
registered in a register
designated for that in the
Financial Regulatory Authority.
“Disclosures”

Some new disclosures have
been added to the re-evaluation
model.

This amendment shows that the
depreciation method that is
based on revenues generated
from the operation that includes
amortization of the asset may
not be used. As the generation
of revenues related to the asset
reflects factors other than the
amortisation of economic
benefits related to the asset.

It is possible to refute this
assumption in limited cases
related to intangible assets when
there is a close correlation
between the volume of revenues
and the intangible asset.

“Measurement”

A re-evaluation model option
has been added to all right-of-
use assets if the right-of-use
asset is related to a category of
fixed assets in which the lessee
applies the re-evaluation model
contained in EAS No. (10)

« 1=

commencing on or after 1
January 2023 retrospectively,
with the recognition of the
accumulated impact of applying
the re-evaluation model initially
by adding it to the re-evaluation
account within equity at the
beginning of the financial
period in which the entity
applies this model for the first
time.

This standard is applied to the
financial periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2023

The entity applies the
amendments to add the option
to use the re-evaluation model
on the financial periods
commencing on or after 1
January 2023 retrospectively,
with the recognition of the
accumulated impact of applying
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Standard name Amendment summary Date of application
“Fixed assets and their the re-evaluation model initially
depreciation” by adding it to the re-evaluation
surplus account within equity at
“Disclosures” the beginning of the financial

Some new disclosures have period in which the entity
been added to the re-evaluation applies this model for the first
model according to EAS No. time.

(10) “Fixed assets and their

depreciation”.
2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

» "’{ \‘f \

(il s WS
Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using t.he currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functlonal currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pounds, which is the Group's functional

and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions made in foreign currency during the period are initially recognised in the functional
currency of the Group on the basis of translation of foreign currency using the prevailing exchange
rates between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction, and the
monetary items denominated in foreign currency are also translated using the closing rate at the end of
each financial period. The Group recognizes the profits and losses of currency differences resulting
from the settlement of such a monetary items or from the translation of monetary items - using
exchange rates different from those used in their translation upon initial recognition in the same
period or in previous financial statements - and this is included in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which these differences arise.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are
recognised as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
as profit or loss as part of fair value gains or losses. For financial assets available for sale that do not

represent monetary items (for example, equity instruments), the gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income.

25 Fixed assets

The Group applies the cost model at measurement of fixed assets. The fixed assets are recognised in
light of this model after being recognised as an asset, based on their cost net of the accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of a fixed asset includes any costs directly

associated with bringing the asset to a working position and condition that it is ready for the intended
use by the Group’s management.

-
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Fixed assets (continued)

The Group capitalises subsequent costs of the acquisition of a fixed asset as a separate asset, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The Group recognises in the carrying amount of a fixed asset the cost incurred
to replace part of that asset at the date such costs are incurred, which is depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the related asset or the estimated useful life, whichever is less, and the carrying amount
of replaced parts is derecognised. The Group recognises the costs of daily servicing of the fixed asset
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The straight line method is used to allocate the depreciation of fixed assets consistently over their
estimated useful lives, except for lands, which are characterised with unlimited estimated useful life.

The estimated useful lives for each type of asset group are as follows:

Buildings, premises and facilities 25-5%
Devices, furniture and equipment 20%
Computer 20%
Transportations 20%
Equipment and tools 20%

The Group reviews the residual value of fixed assets and estimated useful lives of fixed assets at the
end of each financial year, and adjusts them when expectations differ from previous estimates and it is
accounted for prospectively.

The carrying amount of the fixed asset is reduced to the amount of recoverable amount, if the

recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. This reduction is considered as a loss
resulting from impairment.

Profit or loss on the disposal of an item of fixed assets from the books are determined based on the
difference between the net proceeds from the disposal of the item and the carrying amount of the item,
and the gain or loss resulting from the disposal of fixed assets is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “other revenues”.

2.6 Projects in progress

Projects in progress are recognised at cost, which includes all direct costs related and required to bring
the asset to the condition needed for operation and to be used in the intended purpose. Projects in
progress are transferred to fixed assets when they are completed and available for their intended use.

2.7  Works in progress i

ated @nd:réqulté@ kigrinc "

Myl

Works in progress are recognised at cost, which includes all direct costs rel
the asset to the condition needed for sale.
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2: Accounting policies (continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company carries out an annual impairment test for intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
lives or intangible assets that are not available for use at the date of the financial statements. The asset
is assessed for impairment by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated at the smallest identifiable group of assets
generating cash inflows that are significantly greater than the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating unit). Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there
is an indication that such losses no longer exist or have decreased. Impairment losses are also reversed
to release the amount that is equal to the carrying amount which would have been determined (net of
depreciation). Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.9 Financial instruments
(a) Key measurement conditions

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of the fair value
is the price in an active market. An active market is the market in which transactions for an asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as a product of
the quoted price of an individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by the
Company. This is the case even if a market’s normal daily trading volume is insufficient to
accommodate the quantity held, and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction may
affect the quoted price. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined by using evaluation techniques.

(b) Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition, issuance or
derecognition of a financial instrument. The incremental cost is the cost that would not have been
incurred if the transaction had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to
agents (including employees who act as selling agents), consultants, brokers, traders, fees levied by

regulatory authorities. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums, discounts, finance costs,
internal administrative costs, or retention costs. ™"

prees

() Amortised cost v e -‘“‘,.«\ 55\1"3‘ O

W ~ X 18 L o
Amortised cost is the amount for which a financial instrument was recogniSed at ipitial reeognition
less any principal payments in addition to accrued interests, and financial assets, less aily provision for
expected credit losses. Accrued interests include the amortisation of deferfed transaction costs at

initial recognition and any premium or discount till the maturity date using the effective interest rate
method.

= 17 =




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Effective interest rate method

The effective interest rate method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period, to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the
carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate at which estimated future cash payments or
receipts are discounted (excluding future credit losses) through the estimated life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument.
The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest
repricing date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit distribution over the
floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not adjusted to market rates. Such
premiums or discounts are amortised over the expected life of the financial instrument. The present
value calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. For assets that are purchased or originated credit impaired (“POCI”")
at initial recognition, the effective interest rate is adjusted for credit risk, i.e. it is calculated based on
the expected cash flows at initial recognition instead of contractual payments.

(e) Financial instruments — initial recognition

According to EAS No. (47), the financial asset is classified at the initial recognition either as financial
assets at amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets in accordance with EAS
(47) depends on the business model in which the financial asset is managed, the contracted cash flows
and their characteristics.

69 Classification and subsequent measurement - measurement categories.
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: Amortised...-

cost. The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends_on:=(i) “The

Company’s business model for managing the related assets portfolio and (i1) \the cash ,ﬂqw(
characteristics of the asset. v 3 74 K

(2) Classification and subsequent measurement - business model

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows —
whether the Company’s objective is: (i) solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets
(“held to collect contractual cash flows™,) or (ii) to collect both the contractual cash flows and the
cash flows arising from the sale of assets (“held to collect contractual cash flows and sell”) or, if

neither of (i) and (ii) is applicable, the financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model
and measured at FVTPL.

Business model is determined for a group of assets (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant
evidence about the activities that the Company undertakes to achieve the objective set out for the
portfolio available at the date of the assessment. Factors considered by the Company in determining
the business model include the purpose and composition of a portfolio, past experience on how the
cash flows for the respective assets are collected, how risks are assessed and managed, how the assets’
performance is assessed and how managers are compensated).

-18 -

.



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2; Accounting policies (continued)
29 Financial instruments (continued)
(h) Financial assets - classification and subsequent measurement - characteristics of cash flows

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to hold and sell
contractual cash flows, the Company assesses whether the cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”). Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are consistent with the SPPI feature. In making
this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for credit risk, time value of money,
other basic lending risks and profit margin.

Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risks or fluctuations that is inconsistent with a
basic lending arrangement, the financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL. The SPPI
assessment is performed at initial recognition of an asset and it is not subsequently reassessed.

1) Financial assets — reclassification

Financial instruments are reclassified only when the business model for managing the portfolio as a
whole changes. The reclassification has a prospective impact and takes place from the beginning of
the first reporting period that follows the change in the business model.

() Impairment of financial assets - credit losses provision for ECLs

The Company assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the ECLs associated with debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. The Company measures ECLs and recognises net impairment losses of financial
assets at each reporting date. The measurement of ECLs reflects the following: (i) an unbiased and
probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time
value of money and (iii) all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue

cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future conditions.

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost and trade and other receivables are presented in the
statement of financial position less the provision for ECLs.

The Company applies a three-stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired at initial recognition is classified
in Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have their ECLs measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime ECLs that result from default events possible within the next twelve months or until
contractual maturity, if shorter (“twelve months ECLs”). If the Company identifies a significant
increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial recognition, the asset is transferred to Stage 2.and its
ECLs are measured based on ECLs on a lifetime basis, i.e. up until contractual maturiLya,’fﬁl/(in into
account expected prepayments, if any (“lifetime ECLs”). If the Company determines @at,a.«{rﬁh"cial
asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and ECLs are measured a5 lifétithe BCLs.
The Company's definition of credit-impaired assets and the definition of default é@“&x“p\]\a_‘méd’j,n Note
3. For credit-impaired financial assets that are purchased or originated (“POCT assets™), the ECLs are
always measured as lifetime ECLs. Y AT

ol

c

-19-




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Financial instruments (continued)
(k) Financial assets - write-off

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Company exhausted all practical
recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The write-off
represents a derecognition event. The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity when the Company seeks to recover amounts that are contractually due,
however, there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

) Financial assets — derecognition

The Company derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash
flows from the assets otherwise expire or (b) the Company transfers the rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement whilst (i) it also transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transfer nor retain

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but does not retain control.

Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety
to an unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

(m) Financial liabilities - measurement categories

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(n) Financial liabilities — derecognition

- oo av CAs .’.— -’ AD ‘
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e.cwhen_the diability specified in

the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired).

An exchange between the Company and its original lenders of debt instruments with substantially
different terms, as well as substantial amendments of the terms and conditions of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised
as part of gains or losses on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Modifications of liabilities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted for as a change in
estimate using the accumulated method, with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss, unless the

economic substance of the difference in carrying amounts is attributed to a capital transaction with the
owners.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.10  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, while the
Company has an intention to settle on a net basis or recognise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This right to offset may not be (a) contingent on future events (b) the legal right shall
be enforceable in all of the following circumstances: (i) In the normal course of business, (ii) in the
event of default, and (iii) in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

2.11 Inventory

Inventory are evaluated at the lower of actual cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
moving average method and includes purchase cost and other direct costs. The net realisable value
comprises the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling expenses. A
provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s assessment of 1nvent0ry
movement. ——

2.12  Cash and cash equivalents \ {"'_\ »

investments with original maturities of not more than three months from ﬂ1e date of estabhshmem
Cash and cash equivalents are included at amortized cost for the following reasons: (1) They are held
to collect contractual cash flows and those cash flows are SPPI, and (2) they are not designated at
FVTPL. Benefits only imposed by legislation, such as bail legislation in some countries, have no
impact on SPPI assessment, unless they are included in the contractual terms so that the benefit
applies even if the legislation is subsequently changed.

2.13  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is more likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle these obligations;
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are reviewed at the date of each consolidated
financial position and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate. Where the impact of the time value
of cash is significant, the amount recognised as a provision should be the present value of the
expected expenses required to settle the obligation.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced using the impairment account, and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss using the provision for ECLs model. The subsequent recoveries of
the amounts previously written-off are included in the statement of income.

2.15  Issued and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

o
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2, Accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Borrowing

Borrowing is initially recognised at fair value, net of incurred transaction costs. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the recoverable amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the term of the
borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees paid for obtaining the borrowing facilities are
recognized as borrowing transaction costs until part or all of the facility is withdrawn. In this case,
amortisation of a part of the transaction cost related to the loan unused amounts is deferred until they
are used. As long as there is no evidence that part or all of the facility is likely to be withdrawn. The

fees are capitalized as prepayments for liquidity services and are amortised over the term of the
facilities to which they relate.

The Group's borrowings are represented in banks, issued Ijarah Sukuk, and securitizations of future
financial equity.

Borrowings are derecognised from the statement of financial position when the liability specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability that has been cancelled or transferred to other party and the consideration paid,
including any transferred non-monetary assets or contingent liabilities, is recognised in profit or loss
as other finance income or costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right-to défer the
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. T CIRA 10

2.17 Borrowing costs

When obtaining general borrowings or borrowing for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset to
bear the borrowing cost, which is the asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale, the Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the
establishment or production of a qualifying asset as part of that asset’s cost until the completion of all

the material activities required for the preparation of the qualified asset for its intended use or sale to a
third party.

When funds are borrowed for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset to bear the borrowing cost,
the Group determines the amount of borrowing cost that is capitalised on this asset, which is the
actual borrowing cost incurred by the entity during the period because of the borrowing transaction
less any revenue realised from the temporary investment of borrowed funds.

The Group recognises other borrowing costs as expenses in the period the Group incurs such costs.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

(a) Current income tax

- The Group’s current taxes are calculated in accordance with the Egyptian laws and
regulations applicable in the country where the Group’s companies operate.

- The Group is subject to corporate income taxes. The Group uses tax advisors to estimate the
income taxes provision. In case of differences between the final tax outcome with the initially
recorded amounts, such differences will impact income taxes and deferred taxes provision in
the year in which they occur.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.18  Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income taxes are fully recognised using the assets and liabilities method on temporary
differences between the tax value of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements. The applicable tax rates are used to calculate the deferred income
taxes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

2.19  Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers are recognised according to the following five steps:
Step 1 - Determine the contract with customer:

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that estabhshes enforceable rlghts
and obligations and sets standards for these rights and obligations. y T

Step 2 Determine performance obligations in the contract:

A performance obligation in a contract is a pledge to transfer good or service to the customer.

Step 3 - Determine the transaction price:

The transaction price is the amount of the consideration that the Company expects to receive in

exchange for the services promised to be provided to the customer, excluding the amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.

Step 4 - Allocation of transaction price to performance obligations in the contract:

For a contract that contains more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that indicates the consideration that the
Company expects to realize in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation.

Step 5- Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation.
The following are the types of revenues generated by the Company.

(a) Tuition revenues

The Company provides educational services to students through its owned schools. Tuition revenues
are recognised throughout the period of rendering the tuition services.

(b) Bus revenues

The Group provides transport services to students through its owned schools. Bus revenues is
recognised throughout the period of rendering the services.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.19  Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Admission revenue

Admission revenue is recognised when applying for schools and recognised throughout the period of
rendering services.

(d) Contracting revenues

EAS (48) “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” defines a single accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with Customers as a comprehensive model and replaces the current revenue
recognition guidelines found in many standards and interpretations within the Egyptian Financial
Reporting Standards. The standard establishes a five-step model that is based on revenue arising from
contracts with Customers.

(e) Rental revenues

Rental revenues are recognized net of any discount allowed by the lessor '«‘5‘

iod i i s K
method over the period in which the lessee uses the leased asset. il '
- L
(f) Interest income : -~ 0

ng, the: Straight-line

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

When a receivable balance resulting from the recognition of interest is impaired, the carrying amount
will be reduced to its recoverable amount.

(2) Dividends income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.20 Leases

The Group leases some buildings as a lessor, which are used in the Group’s business. The duration of

these contracts ranges from one to five years, and these contracts do not include any non-leasing
components.

The leases were accounted for until 31 August 2021 as operating lease contracts, and from 1
September 2021, these contracts were accounted for in accordance with the requirements of EAS (49)
“Leases” and accordingly, the Group recognised usufruct assets and related lease obligations.

The initial recognition and measurement of these assets and liabilities on the basis of the present
value, and the lease obligations include the net present value of unpaid lease payments on the date of
the beginning of the application. Lease liabilities are deducted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease contract if it can be determined easily, and if this rate cannot be determined easily, the interest
rate is used on the assumption for the Group.
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2, Accounting policies (continued)
2.20  Leases (continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured on a cost basis, as shown below:

- The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities.

- Any lease payments made on or before the contract commencement date less any lease
incentives received.

- Any initial direct costs.

- Estimating the costs that the lessee will incur in returning the asset to its original condition.

Subsequent measurement of (right-of-use asset):
After the lease commencement date, the “right-of-use assets” are measured at cost. As shown below:

- Any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses are deducted.
- Any re-measurement of the lease liability.

(a) Initial Measurement (Lease liabilities):

" { ? 2T

On the start date of the lease. Lease liabilities include the net present Yglgé,oﬁ_f@paidﬁé&sé payments
at the date of application. Lease liabilities are deducted using the interest rate implicit'in the lease
contract if it can be determined easily, and if this rate cannot be determinéd easily, the interest rate is

used on the assumption for the Group.
(b) Subsequent Measurement (Lease Liabilities):
After the lease commencement date, “lease liabilities” are measured. As follows:

- Increase the carrying amount of the liability to reflect the interest on the lease liability.
- Decrease the carrying amount of the liability to reflect the lease payments.

2.21 Employees' benefits
(a) Employees’ share of profit

According to the Companies Law, the Group pays 10% of its cash dividends to be distributed to its
employees amounting maximum of total salaries of the last financial year before distribution.
Employees' share of profit is recognised as dividends in shareholders' equity and as liabilities when
approved by the Shareholders’ (Group’s companies) General Assembly. No liability is recognised in
the employees’ share of undistributed dividends.

(b) Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to the Public Authority for Social Insurance Plans to the employees on
a mandatory basis in accordance with Social Insurance Authority Law No. 79 of 1975 and its
amendments. The entity's liability is determined by the amount of its contribution. Contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss using the accrual basis of accounting.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.22  Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be obtained to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vﬁ?}léﬁﬁé‘f‘?‘%m@ﬂf is based
on the assumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the'liability takes place either:

rax Card: LUS-ME

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or o
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

The Group should be able to have access to the principal market or the most advantageous market.
The fair value of the asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants may

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants behave in their own
economic interests.

Fair value measurement for a non-financial asset takes into consideration the market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits through the maximum and best use of the asset, or by selling it
to another market participant that would ensure the best and ultimate use of the asset.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and where sufficient
data are available to measure the fair value, increase the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimize the use of inputs that are not observable.

The fair value of all assets and liabilities is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements and are included in the fair value hierarchy described below, based on the lowest input
levels that are significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Market prices (unadjusted) prevailing in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities.

- Level 2 - Other valuation methods in which the lowest levels of inputs that have a material
effect on the measurement of fair values are observable, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 - Valuation methods in which the lowest levels of inputs that have a material effect on
the measurement of fair values are not observable.

2.23  Segments reporting

Business segments are reported in accordance with internally submitted reports to senior management
which makes decisions on the resources allocation and performance assessment of the Group's
segments, and represented in the Group’s central management committee. Group activities are divided
into schools activities and higher education activities.

2.24  Uncertain tax positions

Uncertain tax positions of the Group are reassessed by the management at the end of each reporting
period. Income tax positions liabilities determined by the Management are recorded and are certain to
result in additional taxes if the tax position is to be appealed by the tax authorities. The assessment is
based on the interpretation of tax laws prevailing or substantially applicable at the end of the reporting
period, and any known court or other rulings on these cases. Liabilities for fines, interests and taxes
other than income are recognized based on Management's best estimate of the expenditures required
to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting period. Amendments for uncertain income tax
positions, other than interests and fines, are recorded in the income tax expense. Amendments to
uncertain income tax positions in respect of interests and fines are recorded under finance costs and
other profits/(losses), net, respectively.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Dividends

Dividends are recognised as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements upon approval of the
General Assembly of the Company's shareholders. The Company is obligated to deduct 10%
dividends tax, related to the dividends expected to shareholders and pay it within one month from the
date of the Ordinary General Assembly’s approval of the dividends.

2.26  Comparatives figures

Where necessary, comparative figures are reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (including
foreign currency rate risks and interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk

management programme focuses on minimising the potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group's management aims to minimise the potential adverse effects of such risks on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge specific risks.

3.1.1 Market risk

(a) Risks of change in currency exchange rates =V et

Foreign currency exchange rates risks is the risk of fluctuations in the fair value of future cash flows
of the financial instrument due to the change in foreign currency rates. The following analysis shows
the calculation of the impact of reasonable and possible changes in foreign currencies against the

Egyptian pound while keeping all other variables constant, on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The following table shows the currencies position denominated in Egyptian Pounds on the date of the
consolidated financial position:

Currency 31 August 2023 31 August 2022

USD - asset 30,802,610 16,555,805

GBP - asset 2,070 452

Euro - asset/ (liability) (6,890,899) 36,071

AED - asset 145,979 127,608
=27




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (continued)

At the end of the year, if the currencies rate increased or decreased by 10%, the effect on the
consolidated financial statement would be as follows:

Currency 31 August 2023 31 August 2022
USD +/- 10% esee=37080,26 1 1,655,581
GBP +/- 10% 207 45
EUR +/- 10% , La ks T2 1N(689,090) 3,607
AED +/- 10% = P 14,598 12,761
(b) Interest rate risk T e s

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in the market's interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow risk arising from changes in interest rates of its assets and
liabilities due after more than one year bearing variable interest (bank deposits, credit facilities and

[jarah bonds). The Group maintains an appropriate mix of fixed rate and floating rate loans to manage
the interest rate risk.

Note (15) shows the loans and credit facilities owed by the Group.

The below table shows the analysis of sensitivity to possible and reasonable changes in interest rates,
while holding the other variables constant, and the sensitivity on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

The sensitivity on the consolidated statement of profits or losses is the effect of the assumed changes
in the interest rates on the Group's results for one year based on financial assets and liabilities with
variable interest rates at the end of the year:

Impact on the

consolidated
Increase profit or loss
(decrease) EGP
31 August 2023 300 points 80,747,233
31 August 2022 300 points 63,938,407

3.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from current accounts and bank deposits, as well as credit risk associated with the
Group’s customers represented in accrued revenues and amounts due from related parties. The
Group’s credit risk is managed as a whole.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.2  Credit risk (continued)

For banks, the Group dealt with banks with high credit ratings and high credit quality which are
supervised by the Central Bank of Egypt. For customers, the management takes all legal arrangements
and documents when the transaction is executed to reduce the credit risk to a minimum, specifically
for trade receivables. The Group collects most of its revenues in advance before providing the
educational and other related services. The necessary provisions are formed to face the risk of default
of customers for each case separately.

Balances exposed to credit risks are as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Balances and deposits at banks 494,007,604 174,311,892
Due from related parties 134,293,745 62,054,241
Accrued revenues 156,772,712 108,313,241
Investment funds 4,141 3,773

All accrued revenues balances that exceed more than one year are impaired to their maturity dates.

The total balance of provisions for expected credit losses at the end of the year amounted to EGP
34,694,190 (2022: EGP 24,118,302).

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial liabilities as they fall due,
as a result of shortage of funding. The Group's exposure to liquidity risk results primarily from the
lack of offset between maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires maintaining sufficient cash, availability of funding
through an adequate amount of available credit facilities, and reliance on related parties.

The management makes cash flow projections on a monthly basis, which are discussed during the
Parent Company’s Executive Committee meeting, and takes the necessary actions to negotiate with
suppliers, follow-up the collection process from customers and manage the inventory balances in
order to ensure sufficient cash is maintained to discharge the Group's liabilities.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
31 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table shows the aging of the Group's liabilities and based on undiscounted future cash
flows:

31 August 2023
Less than 3 From 3 months From 1 year
months to 1 year to S years
Loans and credit facilities 45,454,055 461,241,531 868,428,626
Securitizations - future financial equity - - 800,000,000
[jarah Sukuk 60,000,000 60,000,000 420,000,000
Land purchase payables 52,491,235 181,126,345 1,304,565,630
Accrued expenses 166,754,396 127,117,411 -
Dividends payables - 49,138,212 -
Suppliers and contractors - 60,769,691 33,694,155
Due to governmental agencies 25,274,753 38,818,329 -
Due to related parties 64,093,082 - -
Leases liabilities - 2,661,634 4,260,219
31 August 2022
Less than 3 From 3 months From 1 year to
months to 1 year S years

Loans and credit facilities 45,281,438 358,945,336  1,137,447,664
Ijarah Sukuk 30,000,000 30,000,000 540,000,000
Land purchase payables - 250,760,018  1,548,620,037
Accrued expenses 120,651,985 - -
Dividends payables - 24,518,131 -
Suppliers and contractors 70,267,785 52,262,345 -
Due to governmental agencies 57,260,942 728,498 -
Due to related parties 119,746,780 - -
Leases liabilities 2 de MM o 16,627,713 2,544,143
3.2 Capital risk management =~ Lo )

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders using

the consolidated financial statements. The Group also aims to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain optimal capital structure, the management may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, reduce capital, issue new shares of capital or reduce the Group's due debts.

The Group’s management monitors the capital structure using the gearing ratio. The net debt
represents the total loans and credit facilities less cash on hand and balances at banks. The total capital

is represented in the Group’s total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
as well as the net debts.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratios at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 are as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Borrowings 1,375,124,171 1,541,674,437
Securitizations - future financial equity 800,000,000 -
Creditors and other credit balances 2,454,187,895 2,289,163,778
[jarah Sukuk 540,000,000 600,000,000
Total debts 5,169,312,066 4,430,838,215
Less: Cash on hand and balances at banks (498,428,158) (178,404,068)
Net surplus of debts 4,670,883,908 4,252,434,147
Equity 1,627,128,830 1,564,484,701
Total capital 6,298,012,738 5,816,918,848
Gearing ratio 74,16% 73,10%

3.3 Estimation of fair value

The fair value is assumed to approximate nominal value less any estimated credit settlements for
financial assets and liabilities with maturities less than one year. For variable interest long-term loans,
their fair value also approximates their nominal value, as they are at variable interest associated with
the corridor rate declared by the Central Bank of Egypt.

4. Significant accounting estimates and judgements " OARA, A0l

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

{a* I T
Estimates and assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and some other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting

estimates will rarely equal the actual results. The following are the significant estimates and
assumptions used by the Group:

(a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle these
liabilities; and the amount can be reliably estimated. the Group reviews the provision at the date of

each financial position and adjusts it to show the best present estimate after taking the appropriate
advice from an expert.
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4. Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group's management annually assesses goodwill to determine any impairment in goodwill. the
carrying amount of goodwill is reduced if it is higher than the expected recoverable amount. goodwill

impairment losses are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and cannot be
subsequently reversed.

(c) Impairment of due revenues

Impairment of accrued revenues is estimated by monitoring the aging of debts, and the ratios adopted
were prepared based on management's best estimate through their experience.

Accrued revenues balances that exceed more than one year are decreased to its maturity dates.

(d) Expected credit losses for financial assets

Loss provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses a range of significant judgments in making these assumptions and selecting
inputs in the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history and current market conditions
as well as future estimates at the end of each year. The expected loss rates are based on the historical
credit losses. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the due amounts. The Group

has determined GDP and therefore adjusts historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors. g, Seiintim AT

VT Il P

(e) Estimating useful lives of fixed assets . cardt 2977

ax &

The useful lives of fixed assets, machinery and equipment. Estimating the useful lives of items of
fixed assets is a matter of judgement based on experience with similar assets. The future economic
benefits included in the assets are primarily depreciated through use. However, other factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence, often result in the decrease of economic benefits of the assets.
Management assesses the remaining useful lives based on the current technical conditions of the

assets and the estimated period during which the assets are expected to generate benefits for the
Group. The following main factors are taken into consideration:

- The expected use of assets.

- The expected material amortisation, which depends on operating factors and maintenance
programme; and

- technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes in market conditions.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

Generally, applying the Group's accounting policies does not require the management to use the
personal judgement (other than the judgement related to the accounting estimates and assumptions

referred to in the Note 4,1), as such judgement could have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -

“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

T Works in progress
31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Medical City - Capital Med 228,260,146 142,735,519
Cairo Heights project - Residential buildings 21,581,907 21,581,907
Regent School in the Cosmic Village 9,678,738 -
Al-Ahly CIRA Company 3,248,852 -
Tech School in the Cosmic village 456,519 -
263,226,162 164,317,426

Related contracting revenues were recognized during the year amounting to EGP 315,688:335 (2022:
EGP 57,893,163) and contracting costs amounting to EGP 280,652,581 (2022: EGP 33,279,154).

8. Investments in associates

Shareholding percentage

31 August 31 August

2023 2022 2023 2022
Egyptians Health Care
Company 28,6% 28,6% 240,520,534 187,572,030
Global Furniture (1) 40% - 14,500,000 -
Innovvette for Education
Company (2) 51% 51% 10,700,000 5,600,000
Perdive for Programming
Company 48,5% 48,5% 255,000 255,000
New Soft Company 23% 23% 156,165 156,165
Cairo Facility Management
Company 30% 30% 60,000 94,000
CIRA Talent Company for
Sports Services and Talent
Development™** 33% 33% - 2,500,000
Cosmic Company for
Educational Investment** 65% 65% - 812,500

266,191,699 196,989,695

Less:

Group's share in profits or

losses of associates (24,506,035) -
Impairment losses in associates (411,165) (411,165)

sk

241,274,499 196,578,530

CIRA Talent Company for Sports Services and Talent Development and Universal Company

for Educational Investment have been consolidated during the year ended 31 August 2023.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

8. Investments in associates (continued)
(a) Group's share of profits or (losses) of associates:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Egyptians Health Care Company (15,611,241) -
Innovvette Company (10,700,000) -
Global Furniture 1,805,206 -

(24,506,035) -

(1) During the year ended 31 August 2022, the Company purchased a 40% investment from
Global Furniture Company, and the investment was classified as an investment in associates
due to the significant influence.

) During the financial year ended 31 August 2023, the Company increased its investment in the

capital of Innovvette Company at an amount of EGP 5,100,000, without changing its
shareholding percentage in the Company.

9. Unconsolidated subsidiaries
The historical cost of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries is as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

International Health Care Company 1,126,285 1,126,285
Alex For Educational Services Company 325,000 325,000

1,451,285 1,451,285
Less: Impairment (1,451,285) (1,451,285)

Those entities have not been consolidated as the value of these investments has been fully impaired
during the past years. Those entities have discontinued their activities and there are no liabilities to be
incurred by the Group regarding the liabilities of those entities.

10. Inventory

. 31August2023 31 August 2022

Computer and electrical equipment inventory : 17,533,980 16,349,926

&
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

11. Debtors and other debit balances

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Advances to suppliers 233,301,611 68,722,998
Accrued revenues 156,722,712 108,313,241
Due from related parties (Note 29) 134,293,745 62,054,241
Paid under investments in associates account 21,521,411 77,252,973
Surplus from future securitizations 16,473,683 -
Withholding tax 15,949,909 6,630,830
Prepaid expenses 14,221,925 10,310,500
Insurances with others 13,135,040 5,271,281
Contracting insurance 9,989,424 -
Advances and loans 8,782,223 6,596,118
Assets against specific-purpose liabilities - 35,000,000
Deferred interests - 86,223,456
Other debit balances 29,890,987 15,530,058
654,282,670 481,905,696

Less:
Provision for ECLs of debtors and other debit balances (34,694,190) (24,118,302)
619,588,480 457,787,394

Provision for “ECLs” of debtors and other debit balances during the year is represented below:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Formed during the year

Write-off during the year

Provisions no longer required during the year
Balance at the end of the year

31 August 2023

31 August 2022

24,118,302 19,637,513
11,329,258 16,886,495
- (4,444 ,433)
(753,370) (7,961,273)
34,694,190 24,118,302

- As at 31 August 2023, accrued revenue balances, due from related parties that are not

impaired amounted to EGP 254,889,262 (31 August 2022: EGP 146,249,180).

- As at 31 August 2023, debtors and other debit balances subject to impairment amounted to
EGP 34,694,190 (31 August 2022: EGP 24,118,302).

12. Cash on hand and balances at banks

Current accounts at banks

Deposits

Cash investment fund

Cash on hand

-~

- 31 August 2023

31 August 2022

ifr ~ VA" 439,287,028

i 162,935,316
P o e 54,720,576 11,376,576
4,141 3,773
4,416,413 4,088,403
498,428,158 178,404,068
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -

“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

12; Cash on hand and balances at banks (continued)

Bank of Egypt.

ok

Current accounts and deposits are deposited with local banks under the supervision of Central

The deposits are due within periods of 365 days from date of placement, and are subject to

interest rates of 14,5% (31 August 2022: 11,25%) per annum. Also, interest rates of current

accounts reached 10% per annum. (31 August 2022: 7% per annum).

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

included the following, as of the date of the financial position:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Cash on hand and balances at banks 498,428,158 178,404,068

Less:

Deposits for more than 3 months (11,376,577) (11,376,577)

Restricted cash at banks (7,402) (7,402)
487,044,179 167,020,089

13. Paid-up capital

The authorized capital is set at EGP 500,000,000. The issued capital was set at EGP 233,116,130,
distributed on 582,790,325 shares, each amounting to EGP 0,40, all of which are fully paid monetary

shares.

The shareholders structure as at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 is as follows:

. Nominal value
percentage
Social Impact Capital "L.L.C" 51,22% 119,395,130
Others L 48,78% 113,721,000
y 233,116,130
14. Reserves ,
The following table shows the movement on reserves during the year:
31 August 2023
Formed
Balance at during the Balance at
1 September year 31 August
Legal reserve 116,558,065 - 116,558,065
Statutory reserve 19,834,444 - 19,834,444
Special reserve 55,390,982 (800,000) 54,590,982
Reserve resulting from foreign currency translation 1,308,245 7,738,870 9,047,115
Total 193,091,736 6,938,870 200,030,606
aill] v




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

14. Reserves (continued)
31 August 2022
Balance at 31

Balance at 1 Formed during August

September the year
Legal reserve 116,558,065 - 116,558,065
Statutory reserve 19,834,444 - 19,834,444
Special reserve 92,667,112 (37,276,130) 55,390,982
Reserve resulting from foreign
currency translation 335,499 972,746 1,308,245
Total 229,395,120 (36,303,384) 193,091,736
(a) Legal, statutory, and special reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law No. 159 of 1981 and the Parent Company's Articles of
Association, 5% of the net profit for the year is transferred to the legal reserve account. Provision

formation will be discontinued once the legal reserve reaches 50% of the issued and authorized
capital.

Also, at least 5% of the profit has to be set aside and transferred to the statutory reserve, until the
reserve reaches 25% of the Parent Company’s issued capital, and when the reserve is decreased, the
said deduction shall be returned. On 30 May 2021, Article (56) of the Company’s~Articles of
Association was amended to discontinue the deduction of the statutory reserve from proﬁts

15. Loans and credit facilities £, S
Current portion N‘dh;currént portion
31 August 31 August = *° 31 August 31 August
Statement 2023 2022 2023 2022

Qatar National Bank- credit facility 20,367,475 40,405,811 =

Qatar National Bank loan (1) 22222222, 22.222:299 - 22222999
Qatar National Bank loan (2) 52,000,000 = 208,000,000 260,000,000
Ahli United Bank loan 320,176,073 251,035,865 463,946,312 583,536,817
European Bank loan 90,562,875 90,562,875 181,125,750 271,688,625
Incolease Company for Finance

Lease loan 1,166,900 - 15,556,564 -

506,495,545 404,226,773 868,628,626 1,137,447,664

(a) Qatar National Bank (1) loan

On 30 May 2019, the Company signed a medium-term loan contract in an amount of EGP100 million
for the purpose of utilizing it to partially finance the projects of constructing new faculties in Badr
University that is 100% owned by the Company. The contract ends on 31 August 2024. The loan is to
be paid on 9 semi-annual instalments of equal value in addition to the related interests.

The balance of this loan as at 31 August 2023 amounted to EGP 22, 222,222 (31 August 2022: EGP
44,444 .444).

-42.-




CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

15. Loans and credit facilities (continued)
(b) Qatar National Bank (2) loan

On 9 September 2021, the Company signed a medium-term loan contract in an amount of EGP 260
million, with the purpose of utilizing it to partially finance the remaining projects of the Company’s
expansion plan represented in establishing the Faculty of Pharmacy and Dentistry at Badr University,
Assiut Governorate, and establishing two new schools in Minya and Mirage City, and completing the
construction works at Badr University and schools in New Mansoura City. The contract ends on 31
August 2028. The loan is to be paid on 12 semi-annual instalments of equal value in February and
August, in addition to the applicable interest. Provided that the first instalment is due on the last day
of February 2024, followed by the second instalment on the last day of August 2021, and so on,
respectively and periodically, every six-months until the maturity date of the eleventh and final
instalment that is due on 31 August 2028 in addition to the related interests.

The balance of this loan at 31 August 2023 amounted to EGP 260,000,000 (31 August 2022: EGP
260,000,000). The loan is subject to an interest rate at the corridor rate announced by the Ceritral
Bank, plus a credit margin.

The principal conditions and guarantees of the above loans are: 2w}

- Transfer all income generated from operations of the schools and Badr University'to a special
account with the lending bank and is used as an additional repayment method for the principal
and interest.

- Dividends are not to be distributed unless all liabilities arising from loans from the
distribution year are fulfilled.

- Assets are not to be sold, mortgaged, or assigned to third parties without obtaining a written
approval from the bank.

- Shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements should not be less than EGP 420
million. Maintain financial leverage ratio (total liabilities/ equity) below 1,2 :1 Debt service
rate (earnings before interest, tax and depreciation/ total financial liabilities) is not to be less
than 1:1.

- Not to obtain any loans or credit facilities unless after obtaining a written approval from the
bank.

(c) Ahli United Bank loan

On 14 January 2021, the Company signed a medium-term loan contract of EGP 100 million for the
purpose of future expansions in establishing schools and new faculties in Badr University which is
wholly owned by the Company. The contract amount was increased by EGP 200 million as a second
payment. The contract was increased again by an amount of EGP 225 million. The contract ends on
31 August 2024, and this loan is to be paid in 9 semi-annual instalments of equal value starting from
February 2022. However, the Company is still paying the related interests during the current year,
with a grace period estimated at one year without any administrative expenses. On 11 November 2021
and 10 April 2022, the contract was increased for the last time by an amount of EGP 150 million.
During the year, the Company obtained a credit facility of EGP 20 million. The Company signed a
medium-term loan contract with an amount of EGP 150 million, for the purpose of the medical city
project of Egyptians Health Care Company.

The balance of this loan as of 31 August 2023 amounted to EGP 784,122,385 (31 August 2022: EGP
834,572,681).
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY -
“CIRA EDUCATIONAL” (S.A.E) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - for the financial year ended 31 August 2023

(All amounts in the notes are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

15. Loans and credit facilities (continued)
(c) Ahli United Bank loan (continued)
Principal conditions and guarantees:

- Submitting to the bank the collateral guarantees from the following companies: Upper Egypt
Educational Services, Emco for Systems and Computers, Global Educational Technologies,
and Educational Systems International, provided that each guarantee covers the full amount of
the finance granted by the bank under this contract.

- Submitting to the bank every six-months the commercial register extract of the Company,
explaining that there are no mortgages on its assets.

- Opening an operating account with the bank, the First Party, to collect all revenues related to
the funded schools and the revenues resulting from the expansion of Badr University, that
have been funded by the bank.

- Submitting to the bank a written undertaking signed by the legal representative of Badr
University to transfer the net surplus generated from its activity to the Company to cover any
financial liabilities payable on the Company throughout the duration of the finance granted by
the bank, according to the budget of the University.

- Submitting to the bank a quarterly financial report within 90 days of the end of each quarter
of the financial year of the borrowing Company and the guarantors. The Company is also
committed to achieving the financial terms in all consolidated financial positions and budgets
provided to the bank throughout the duration of the finance as follows:

(1) The debt service rate of consolidated financial statements (total cash flows from operating
activities in addition to depreciation and amortisation less tax divided by annual financial
payments in addition to the annual dividends) should not fall below 1,15. ’

(2) The financial leverage of consolidated financial statements (total bank loans divided by net
shareholders' equity) should not exceed 1,5. 0

The loan is subject to an interest rate at the corridor rate announced by the Central Bank plus a credit
margin. v

(d) European Bank loan

On 30 September 2019, the Company signed a medium-term loan contract of EGP 452 million. The
first instalment was injected on 19 September 2019, and the second instalment was injected within
three months from 31 August 2021 for the purpose of purchasing a new land in Assiut to establish
faculties related to Badr University - Assiut and the establish stage 1 of the University fully owned by
the Company. The contract ends on 30 September 2027. The loan shall be paid on 12 semi-annual
instalments of equal value. However, the Company is still paying the related interests, during the
current year, with a grace period of approximately two years.

The balance of this loan at 31 August 2023 amounted to EGP 271,688,625 (31 August 2022: EGP

362,251,500). The loan is subject to an interest rate at the corridor rate announced by the Central
Bank, plus a credit margin.
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15. Loans and credit facilities (continued)
(d) European Bank loan (continued)

Principal conditions and guarantees:

- The ratio of debt service coverage of consolidated financial statements, that is the cash
available for debt service for a period of 12 months before the repayment date to the total
principal payments of the repayment on all outstanding financial debts should be a ratio of
1512,

- The net financial debts should not exceed 3 times the profits before interest, tax and
depreciation.

- The ratio of the debt should not exceed 1,3 of the total equity.

- The borrower undertakes that the contribution of the guarantor in the revenues and profits
before interest, taxes and depreciation should not be less than 50%.

(e) Incolease Company for Finance Lease loan

On 17 August 2023, the Company signed a medium-term loan contract of EGP 27,339,482 for the
purpose of constructing new faculties in Badr University that is 100% owned by the Company. The
contract ends on 31 August 2027. The loan is to be paid in 54 quarterly instalments of fixed value ,
noting that this value changes (increase or decrease) according to the change in the corridor rate

announced by the Central Bank of Egypt, which was 12,25% when the contract was signed.

The balance of this loan as at 31 August 2023 amounted to EGP 16,723,464 (31 August 2022: Nil).

16. Ijarah Sukuk

.31 August 2023

31 August 2022

[jarah Sukuk- non-current portion 420,000,000 540,000,000
Prepaid expenses - Sukuk (6,496,384) (8,445,299)
Total 413,503,616 531,554,701
[jarah Sukuk- current portion 120,000,000 60,000,000
Prepaid expenses - Sukuk (1,948,915) (1,948,915)
Total 118,051,085 58,051,085
531,554,701 589,605,786

On 29 December 2021, the Company issued Ijarah Sukuk in compliance with the provisions of
Islamic Sharia, negotiable and non-convertible for shares on a single issue amounting to EGP 600
million with the purpose of recovering investment costs and using them in the Group's activities for
future expansions in the higher education and pre-university education sector and to pay off the
Group’s financial liabilities including its liabilities towards the lending banks. 6 million sukuk were
issued with a nominal value of 100 per sakk, and the period of issuance is 84 months starting from
January 2022. The rental value of sukuk is to be paid in 10 equal semi-annual instalments starting
from 30 April 2023 until the end of the issuance period on 31 October 2027.
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16. Ijarah Sukuk (continued)

The sukuk were issued with a guarantee of a land and buildings of four schools owned by the Group,
which are the land and buildings of Futures French/ German International Languages School in Rehab
city, the land and buildings of Futures Language School - Rehab city, the land and buildings of
Futures Girls Elementary School (1) and (2), and the land and buildings of Othman Ibn Affan School
- Rehab city. These assets subject of securitization were valued at a fair value of EGP 878,743,896,
which represents a ratio of 1:1,46 of the total value of the issued sukuk. The school buildings
mentioned above are insured against theft and fire.

The variable return of these sukuk is calculated in Egyptian pounds based on the lending rate
announced by the Central Bank of Egypt in addition to the 0,75% margin ratio, provided that the
announced lending rate is reviewed by the Central Bank of Egypt every six months. The return shall

be paid semi-annually on 30 April and 31 October of each year until the end of the issuance period on
31 October 2027.

In implementing the sukuk issuance process, the following contracts were concluded:

(a) A contract of sale and purchase of the assets subject of securitization has been concluded to
the securitization company in exchange for payment of the purchase price from the entire
proceeds of subscribing to the sukuk

(b) A leasing contract for the assets subject of securitization has been concluded whereby the
securitization company is obligated to lease the assets subject to the bonding mentioned above
to the Group as a lessee for the duration of the issuance period in exchange for a rental value
paid by the Group to the securitization company according to the payment terms mentioned

above.

(©) Purchase and sell contracts has been concluded whereby upon the expiry of the lease term, the
assets subject of securitization will be resold to the Group.

(d) A service agency contract was concluded between the securitization company and the Group

according to which the Group was authorized to act as a management agent of the assets
subject of securitization.

These assets have not been derecognised from the books of the Group, due to the lack of conditions
for derecognition of the assets, including the non-transfer of control over the leased assets to the
securitization company and the Group’s continuity in managing these assets.

The cost item for issuing sukuk represents the professional financial expenses and consultancy fees
required to issue the sukuk. This item is amortised over the period of issuance mentioned above. The
movement in the cost of issuing the sukuk is as follows:

- _31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year S A" D 10,394,214 12,343,129

Amortisation of sukuk issuance cost (Note 28) s " a0 LB (1,948,915) (1,948,915)

Balance at the end of the year g ‘ ’ 8,445,299 10,394,214
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17. Securitizations- future financial equity

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Securitizations- future financial equity 800,000,000 -
Prepaid expenses - securitizations (15,104,425) -
Total 784,895,575 -

The Egyptian Financial Regulatory Authority approved that the Financial Group for Securitization
Company issues the first multi-issuance program for future financial equity securitizations at an
amount of EGP 2 billion for a period of 3 years in favour of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate
Development Company in the capacity of the assigning company for the future financial equity
portfolio, provided that the first issuance of the program amounts to a maximum of

EGP 800 million for a period of seven years, and the first tranche was issued at an amount of EGP
800 million during the period.

The cost item for issuing securitizations - future financial equity represents the required professional
financial expenses and consultancy fees. This item is amortised over the period of issuance mentioned

above. The movement in the cost of securitizations - future financial equity is as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year

Securitizations issuance cost - future financial equity 17,357,930 -
Amortisation of securitizations - future financial equity

(Note 28) (2,253,505) -
Balance at the end of the year 15,104,425 -

The Company maintains a reserve account with the custodian which is financed by transferring any
surplus from the proceeds account after paying the coupon due, from an asset and return, to the
bondholders, and any commissions and expenses due, as of the first coupon due in 30 April 2023. So
that the amounts outstanding in the reserve account at any time shall be a maximum of the amount
due to the bondholders of the asset and return of the next coupon, to meet any deficit to meet the
rights of the securitization bonds holders, without referring to the Financial Group for Securitization
Company. There is no specific date required to fully feed this account (the value of due from the asset
and return of the next coupon) as long as the Company has not been disbursed. The Company
undertakes and guarantees to pay the bondholders’ dues on their due dates, and in the event of any
deficit to pay the amount and asset of the bonds and the next due return, and the reserve account
balance is insufficient, it undertakes to pay to cover this deficit from its own resources. There is.also a

franchise right for the bondholders over the cash flows subject to the securitization in the-event of a
breach. ' i
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Creditors and other credit balances

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Land purchase payables 1,538,183,210 1,799,380,055
Suppliers and contractors 94,463,846 68,386,882
Contractor insurance 52,171,600 42,138,098
Deposits for others 12,667,033 25,806,970
Social Insurances 15,035,846 10,635,984
Accrued expenses 293,871,807 120,651,985
Due to related parties (Note 29) 289,069,902 119,746,780
Due to government agencies 64,093,082 57,989,440
Dividends payables 49,138,212 24,518,131
Other credit balances 45,493,357 19,909,453
2,454,187,895 2,289,163,778
Less: Non-current portion
Lands purchase payables - non-current portion* (1,376,273,586) (1,548,620,037)
1,077,914,309 740,543,741

The balance of land purchase payables represents new lands in the framework of the
expansion of the Company's activities and the establishment of new schools. A land was
purchased in Badr City and Badr University in Assiut Governorate amounting to EGP 673
million, 15% of its amount was paid and the rest shall be paid in 20 semi-annual instalments
ending on 12 January 2031. A land was also purchased in the New Alamein City amounting
to EGP 31 million, 20% of its amount was paid, and the rest shall be paid in 8 semi-annual
instalments ending on 2 June 2024. Rasheed land was also purchased, 15% was paid, and the
rest shall be in 10 semi-annual instalments ending on 12 September 2026, with an amount of
EGP 37 million. A land in Qena was purchased, 15% was paid, and the rest shall be paid in
10 semi-annual instalments ending on 29 November 2025, with an amount of EGP 10 million.
A land in Sohag was purchased as well, 15% was paid, and the rest shall be in 10 ten semi-
annual instalments ending on 20 October 2025, with an amount of EGP 10 million, and
finally, 2 buildings in the city of Nasser Assiut, 40% was paid,.and the rest shall be paid in 12

quarterly instalments ending on 10 May 2025, with an amount of EGP 11 million.

19. Advance revenues

Advance revenues represent the revenues that the Group ha< collected and has not provided the

educational services related to it yet.

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Advance revenues - higher education 381,044,611 207,297,993
Advance revenue - primary education 281,560,796 133,677,058
Advance revenues - contracting 179,049,752 -
841,655,159 340,975,051
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20. Income tax
Income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profits or losses for the year is as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Current income tax 184,896,603 162,266,126
Deferred tax (Note 21) (2,974,033) 1,379,074
Total 181,922,570 163,645,200

Tax on the profit before tax differs from the amount expected to be reached by applying the average
tax rate applicable to the Group's profits as follows:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Accounting profit before tax 304,471,636 537,549,644
Income taxes based on prevailing tax rates 68,506,118 120,948,668
Add (less):

Non-deductible expenses 48,454,175 36,390,867
Non-taxable revenues (23,909,043) (466,906)
Deferred tax assets not recognised 88,871,320 3,220,198
Tax differences for previous years - 3,552,373
Tax as per the statement of profit or loss 181,922,570 163,645,200

Current income tax liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 164,501,879 130,381,348
Payments during the year ~7(164,019,196) (128,145,595)
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year “ - 2" 184,896,603 162,266,126
Balance at the end of the year 2 »~185,379,286 164,501,879

21. Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities comprises temporary differences attributable to fixed assets:

Balance at Movement for the Balance at
1 September 2022 year 31 August 2023
Fixed assets 36,553,438 (2,974,033) 33,929,957
36,553,438 (2,974,033) 33,929,957

Balance at Movement for the Balance at
1 September 2021 year 31 August 2022
Fixed assets 35,174,364 1,379,074 36,553,438
35,174,364 1,379,074 36,553,438
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22, Provisions

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Claims provision 56,243,972 83,713,517
Lawsuits provision 1,063,436 924,173

57,307,408 84,637,690

The movement of provisions during the year is as follows:

31 August 2023

Balance at Formed Utilised Transferred Balance at
the beginning  during the during the from credit  the end of
of the year year year balances the year
Claims provision 83,713,517 11,991,008  (41,660,553) 2,200,000 56,243,972
Lawsuits provision 924,173 139,263 1,063,436

84,637,699 12,130,271  (41,660,553) 2,200,000 57,307,408

31 August 2022

Balance at the Formed during  Utilised during  Balance at the

DEZHINE of the the year the year end of the year
year
Claims provision 87,872,874 13,105,665 (17,265,022) 83,713,517
Lawsuits provision 1,054,383 - (130,210) 924,173
88,927,257 13,105,665 (17,395,232) 84,637,690
(a) Claims provision

Claims provision is related to expected claims from other parties in relation to the Company’s
activities. Information usually published on the provisions made according to accounting standards
was not disclosed, as the management believes that doing so may seriously affect the outcome of
negotiations with these parties. The management reviews these provisions on-an annual basis, and the

allocated amount is adjusted according to the latest developments, discussions,ana‘a’greements with
such parties.

(b) Lawsuits provision

Lawsuits provision amounted to EGP 1,063,436 at 31 August 2023‘;.(31:August 2022: EGP 924,173)

based on the Group’s legal advisor’s estimations. The provision is adjusted for each amendment per
each case separately.

If the estimations related to formed provisions have changed by 10% (increase or decrease), the

impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss will be EGP 106,344 increase or decrease (31
August 2022: EGP 92,417).
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23. Operating revenues

Tuition revenues

Bus revenue

Admission revenue
Contracting revenues
Other operating revenues

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
1,880,056,774 1,554,546,120
32,139,298 22,649,960
27,606,084 23,050,475
315,688,335 57,893,163
87,520,596 59,218,454
2,343,011,087 1,717,358,172

Related contracting revenues were recognized during the year amounting to EGP 315,688,335 (2022:
EGP 57,893,163) and contracting costs amounting to EGP 280,652,581 (2022: EGP 53,279,754) from

related parties.

24, Operating cost

Employees' salaries, wages and benefits

Depreciation expenses

Contracting cost

Maintenance, electricity, utilities and communications
expenses

Professional and consulting fees and charges and others
Tuition tools, aids and books expenses

Transportation expenses

Leases

Right-of-use assets depreciation - leases

Leases liabilities interests expenses

Other expenses

25. General and administrative expenses « '

Employees' salaries, wages and benefits

Professional and consulting fees and charges

ECL of debtors and other debit balances
Maintenance, electricity, utilities and communications
expenses

Salaries and allowances of the Board, its committees, and
board of trustees members

Right-of-use assets depreciation - leases

Depreciation expenses

Takaful contribution

Leases

Other expenses
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31 August 2023 31 August 2022
575,334,447 436,224,226
193,438,553 133,561,928
280,652,581 53,279,754

53,202,597 47,173,640
40,813,971 32,727,404
40,989,223 31,434,694
45,219,797 27,270,371
12,084,525 13,385,602
13,734,660 11,199,375

" 2,588,709 2,024,228
56,061,304 47,535,441
_1,314,120,367 835,816,663

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

168,898,311 124,895,910
46,202,308 31,723,950
11,329,258 14,520,533
25,214,323 13,074,543

1,022,000 929,300
2,102,268 -
2,259,590 2,578,014
3,078,846 1,965,265
3,838,941 1,596,389
37,134,803 22,161,652
301,080,648 213,445,556
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26. Expenses by nature

Salaries, wages and benefits

Depreciation expenses

Professional and consulting fees, charges, and penalties
Maintenance, electricity, utilities and communications
expenses

Contracting costs

Tuition tools, aids and books expenses

Transportation expenses

Leases *

ECL of debtors and other debit balances

Right-of-use assets depreciation - leases

Lease liabilities interests

Takaful contribution

Salaries and allowances of the Board, its committees, and
board of trustees members

Other expenses

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
744,232,758 561,120,136
195,698,143 136,139,942

87,016,279 64,451,354
78,416,920 60,248,183
280,652,581 53,279,754
40,989,223 31,434,694
45,219,797 27,270,371
4,652,392 14,981,991
11,329,258 14,520,533
15,836,928 11,199,375
2,588,709 2,024,228
3,078,846 1,965,265
1,022,000 929,300
104,467,181 69,697,093
1,615,201,015 1,049,262,219

These leases are leases of less than a year and of a small value.

% Consultation amounts include amounts paid to Social Impact Capital “LLC” (Parent
Company) in exchange for administrative consultations.
27. Other revenues

.31 August 2023

Variable leases

Reversal of provisions no longer required
Investment fund income

Miscellaneous revenues

28. Finance costs — net

Interest revenues
foreign currency differences profits
Amortisation of sukuk issuance cost

Amortisation of securitizations cost - future financial equity
Interest expenses

31 August 2022
2,981,030 2,576,433
- 1,907,516
3,796,134 1,185,167
6,892,928 6,892,928
13,670,092 9,339,350

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
55,914,788 11,784,315
12,782,730 3,362,012
(1,948,915) (1,948,915)
(2,253,505) -
(464,867,320) (139,977,406)
(400,372,222) (126,779,994)
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29, Related parties transactions

During the year, the Group has made some transactions with related parties represented in the main
shareholder of the Group, its associates and some entities that are owned by the major shareholders.
Outstanding balances from and to related parties resulting from these transactions are as follows:

29.1  Balances due from related parties

Company

Parent Company
Associates

29.2  Balances due to related parties

Company

Associates

29.3  Related parties transactions during the year

Egyptians Health Care Company
Contributions in share capital

Mafrix Company
Bank transfers

Social Impact Capital
Bank transfers

Future for Educational Activities
Proceeds of tuition revenues
Tuition expenses

Management consideration

Badr University in Assiut (under construction)
Bank transfers and other payments
Student payments

NEX E-Learning Investments
Bank transfers

29.4  Board of directors’ salaries and allowances

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
45,601,089 52,180,174
88,692,656 9,874,067

134,293,745 62,054,241

31 August 2023

31 August 2022

289,069,902 119,746,780
289,069,902 119,746,780
Movement

31 August 2023

31 August 2022

81,001,086

(227,761)

4,784,494

(3,466,638)
3,170,917
64,960,67

23,352,116

17,871,864
(538,745)

22,233,150

The charges of the key management of the Company during the year and the charged to the statement
of profit or loss represents the amounts of salaries and allowances of members of the Board of
Directors and its committees disclosed in the general and administrative expenses note (Note 26).
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30. Non-controlling interests

The movement of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial

statements during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 September 2022
Non-controlling interests of acquired
companies

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Dividends

Currency differences resulting from foreign
transactions translation

Profit for the year

Balance at 31 August 2023

Balance at 1 September 2021
Non-controlling interests of acquired
companies

The share of non-controlling interest in the
capital increase

Dividends

Currency differences resulting from
foreign transactions translation

Profit for the year

Balance at 31 August 2022

Share Retained 31 August
capital Earnings 2023
82,286,673 53,711,723 135,998,396
140,150,000 - 140,150,000
(500,000) - (500,000)
- (14,927,761) (14,927,761)
- 1,934,718 1,934,718
- (2,814,029) (2,814,029)
221,936,673 37,904,651 259,841,324
Share Retained 31 August
capital Earnings 2022
64,990,334 62,785,013 127,775,347
(2,703,661) - (2,703,661)
20,000,000 - 20,000,000
- (12,451,797) (12,451,797)
- 243,187 243,187
: - 3,135,320 3,135,320
82,286,673 53,711,723 135,998,396

31. Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and acquisitions during the period and it represents
the difference arising between the consideration paid in the subsidiaries, the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries at the acquisition date. It represents the
acquiree payments for future economic benefits of assets that cannot be identified individually or
recognized separately. The goodwill is as follows:

Egyptian Educational Systems Company

Educational Systems International Company

Global Educational Technologies Company
Cairo for Educational Services Company

Cairo Masr for Educational Premises Company

Star Light Company

(Less):

Impairment of goodwill related to companies under

liquidation

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
5,133,061 5,133,061
355,800 355,800

238,666 238,666

157,018 157,018

51,936 51,936
31,578,279 28,171,629
37,514,760 34,108,110
(5,133,061) (5,133,061)
32,381,699 28,975,049
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31. Goodwill (continued)

For the goodwill impairment testing purposes, each subsidiary is considered a cash generating unit.
During the year, the management conducted a goodwill impairment test based on the “value in use”.

Below is summary for the significant assumptions employed by the management for the purpose of
testing goodwill value:

Growth rate 3%
Discount rate 20%

Management used the estimated budgets approved by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors. The

value in use exceeded the carrying amount of the entities and no impairment of goodwill has resulted
for any of the cash generating units.

- On 21 April 2019, the Extraordinary General Assembly meeting of the Egyptian Education
Systems Company resolved to agree to put the Company under liquidation, provided that the
liquidation period is one year, starting from the date of the notification of the resolution to put
the Company under liquidation in the commercial register, and it was approved to appoint
Mr./ Mohamed Naguib Salah El-Din, the liquidator of the Company. As Cairo for Investment
and Real Estate Development Company owns 100% of the Egyptian Education Systems
Company, Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development Company will acquire all of
these assets. This resulted in impairment of its goodwill of EGP 5,133,061 on 31 August
2019.

- On 26 June 2019, the Group purchased 60% of the shares of Star Light (owner of Canadian
Columbia International School) under the agreement signed with W.D. Capital Company. The
control of the Group was transferred on 1 September 2019. The Group expects that this
acquisition will result in an increase in its market share and future economic benefits. This
transaction resulted in goodwill of EGP 28,171,629.

The following table shows the consideration transferred to acquire Star Light Company, and the fair
value of the acquired assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition.

Acquisition cost at 1 September 2019

Cash paid (103,406,650)
Total acquisition cost A (103,406,650)

Assets and liabilities acquired from Star Light Group for Educational §ervices and its subsidiaries on
1 September 2019 were as follows:

EGP
Fixed assets i 190,346,554
Other debit balances i 5,606,125
Cash at banks 9,754,516
Deferred tax liabilities (29,571,124)
Other liabilities (66,344,961)
Net fair value of assets acquired 109,791,110
Non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition (37,962,739)
Cash paid (103,406,650)
Goodwill 32,381,699
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32. Right-of-use assets — leases

The right-of-use asset represents the lease contracts related to the buildings. It was measured at the
carrying amount as if the standard was applied since the beginning of the lease contract, but it was
deducted using the borrowing rate for the lessee at the date of application, and was subsequently
depreciated over the life of the lease contract using the straight-line method.

31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 18,263,419 -
The impact of initial application of EAS No. (49) “Leases” - 29,462,794
Additions 5,385,437 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets during the year (15,836,928) (11,199,375)
Balance 7,811,928 18,263,419

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s borrowing rate is used, which is the rate that shall be paid by the lessee to
borrow the funds needed for the acquisition of an equivalent value asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions. An average interest rate of 20,5% was used.

33. Lease liabilities

The liability represents the present value of the lease liabilities relating to the administrative office of
the Group that was obtained in return for a lease, and was assessed at the present value of the
contractual lease payments deductible at the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of 20,5%.

The following is the deducted amount for lease liabilities:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Present value
Within 1 year 2,661,634 16,627,713
More than one year 4,260,219 2,544,143
6,921,853 19,171,856

The lease liabilities were presented as follows:

31 August 2023

31 August 2022

Lease liabilities as at the beginning of the year 19,171,856 -
The impact of applying EAS No. (49) “Leases” - 31,279,668
Additions 5,385,437 -
Add: Interest charged during the year 2,588,709 2,024,228
(Less): Lease payments during the year (20,224,149) (14,132,040)
Lease liabilities at 31 August 2023 6,921,853 19,171,856
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34.

Earnings per share

The following is the earnings per share taking into account an increase in the capital that was
indicated in the commercial register issued on 17 December 2018:

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

Net profits for the year 125,363,095 370,769,124

Board of directors’ remuneration (4,466,098) (18,538,456)

Employees’ profits share (8,264,691) (37,076,912)

112,632,306 315,153,756

Weighted average number of shares 582,790,325 582,790,325

Earnings per share for the year 0,19 0,54

35. Tax position

35.1  Cairo Education Services “S.A.E”

(a) Corporate Tax

- The Company was inspected for the years fromi 1998 tntil 1999 and the due tax of EGP
129,874 was paid.

- The Company was inspected for the years from 2000 to 2004, and they were appealed on the
legal deadlines. The dispute was referred to the Appeal Committee with a tax of 9,743,688,
and the amount was paid on 8/10/2023.

- The Company was not inspected from 2005 to 2008. The Company submits the tax returns
regularly within the legal deadlines and pays the due tax based on the tax returns submitted on
the legal deadlines and years from 2005 until 4 May 2008.

- The net profit of schools activity is exempted from the corporate income tax in accordance
with Law No. 91 of 2005.

- The Company was inspected for the years from 2009 to 2010, and the due tax amounting to
3,537,060 was paid for the years 2009 and 2010. They were appealed on the legal deadline,
and the dispute was referred to the Internal Committee.

- Years from 2011 to 2014, the Company was not inspected during the aforementioned years
except for 2012. It was appealed on the legal deadline and the dispute is being settled.

- Years from 2015 to 2016, the tax returns were submitted on the legal deadline, and the
Company was notified of Forms No. (10) Taxes for 2015 and 2016, with a tax, and they were
appealed on the legal deadline, and the dispute was referred to the Internal Committee of the
Authority.

- Years from 2017, tax returns were submitted on the legal deadline, and the Company was not
notified of any tax forms until 2023.

(b) Salaries tax

The Company was inspected for 2015, and the due tax was paid.
The Company was notified of Form No. (38) Salaries for the years 2016/2017, and they were
appealed on the legal deadlines, and the dispute was referred to the Internal Committee.

The Company submits returns and pays tax on the legal deadlines, from the years 2018 until
2023
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35. Tax position (continued)
351  Cairo Education Services “S.A.E” (continued)

(c) Stamp Duty Tax

- The Company was inspected until 30/6/2010. The Company was notified of the amount of
76,067, and part of it was paid.

- The Company was notified of Form No. (19) Stamp Duty Tax for the years 2010/2017, and

they were appealed on the legal deadlines, and the dispute is still pending before the Internal
Committee.

- Years from 2018 to 31 August 2023, the Company was not inspected until the financial
statements date.

(d) Value added tax (VAT)

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.

(1) Years from 2002 until 2004

The Authority has accounted the Company depending on estimation, and Form No. 18 was notified
and objected and Form No. 19 Tax was notified and appealed. The file was referred to the Internal
Committee of the Authority and the Company submitted a request to re-inspect these years and the
dispute was transferred to the appeal committees. A defence memorandum was submitted and the

appeal committee decision was issued to return the file to the Authority to prepare for the completion
of the book inspection at the Authority.

(ii) Years from 2005 until 2008

The tax returns were submitted on deadline and the tax was paid based on the tax returns and the

Company was not inspected since it was not included in the inspection sample and tax returns net
profits for those years were approved.

(iii) Years from 2009 until 2010

The Company was charged with the corporate tax based on estimation. The Company was notified of
Form 19, and it was appealed. The file was referred to the Internal Committee of the Authority.

35.2  Cairo For Investment & Real Estate Development “S.A.E”
(a) Corporate Tax

(1) Years from 2011 until 2012

Accounting and assessments were conducted for the years 2011/2012 according to the decision of the
Appeal Committee with a total tax of ( EGP 9,905,640), and the due tax was paid in full.

(i1) Years from 2013 until 2014

The Company was charged with the corporate tax based on estimation. The Company was notified of

Form 19 and it was appealed on the legal deadline. The file was referred to the Internal Committee of
the Authority to issue a decision for re-inspection.
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35. Tax position (continued)
35.2  Cairo For Investment & Real Estate Development “S.A.E” (continued)
(iii) Years from 2015 until 2016

The Company has not been inspected for those years and it submits the tax returns at the specified tax
dates and the tax is paid based on the tax return.

(iv) Years from 2017 until 2018:

The Company was charged and was notified of Forms 19 Taxes for the years 2017 and 2018. The
forms were appealed, and an internal committee is being set up for re-inspection.

(v) Years from 2019 to 31 August 2023

The Company has not been inspected for those years and it submits the tax returns at the specified tax
dates and the tax is paid based on the tax return.

(b) Salaries tax

@) Years from 2011 until 2014

Accounting was conducted with a total amount of (EGP 1,315,330), and the tél);._WaS paid and settled.
(i) Years from 2015 to 2020: ¢

Tax returns were submitted on their legal deadlines, the tax was paid based on the tax returns, and the
Company is under inspection by taxes.

(iii))  Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

Tax returns were submitted on their legal deadlines, the tax was paid based on the tax returns, and the
Company was not inspected.

(c) Stamp Duty Tax
) Years from 2006 to 2019:

The Company was inspected and notified of Form No. 5 Stamp, and the payment and settlement were
fully made.

(i) Years from 2020 to 31 August 2023:

Tax returns were submitted on their legal deadlines, the tax was paid based on the tax returns, and the
Company was not inspected.
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35. Tax position (continued)

35.2  Cairo For Investment & Real Estate Development “S.A.E” (continued)

(d) General tax on sales

The Company submits tax returns on sales regularly and on the legal deadlines. The Company was
inspected since inception until 2005, and the tax differences resulting from the inspection and the
additional tax were paid. The Company was inspected for the years from 2006 until 2013. The tax and
fines were fully paid for that period . The Company was not notified on any other inspections. Tax
returns were submitted for the years from 2014 to 31 August 2023 on their legal deadlines, the tax
was paid based on the tax returns, and the Company was not inspected.

35.3  Egyptian Company for Education Systems “S.A.E”

(a) fCorporate income tax

(i) Years from 2005 to 31 August 2023

- Tax returns were submitted on the legal deadline and the Company is exempted from taxes
until 4 May 2008 according to the provisions of Law No. 91 of 2005.
- The period from 5 May 2008 until 31 August 2023. The Company was not notified of any tax

forms during that period, except for the year 2015/2016, as Form 19 was notified and
appealed.

(b) Salaries tax

(i) Years from 2005 to 31 August 2023

The Company pays the payroll tax monthly on their legal deadlines, and there are no payroll tax
notifications for those years.

(c) Stamp duty tax

(i) Years from 2005 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax notifications related to the tax period.

(d) General tax on sales

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 11 of 1991 and its amendments.

(e) Value added tax (VAT)

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.
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35. Tax position (continued)

354  Global Educational Technology “S.A.E”
(a) Corporate income tax

(i) . Years from 2003 to 2004

The Company submits the tax returns on the legal deadlines and it has not been notified of the
inspection during these years.

(ii) Years from 2005 to 4 May 2008

- The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline.

- The Company is exempted from the commercial profits tax in accordance with Law No. 91 of
2005.

(ii1) Years from 2008 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits the tax returns on the legal deadlines and it has not been notified of the
inspection during these years.

(a) Salaries tax

(1) Years from 2003 to 31 August 2023

The Company pays the salaries tax monthly on their legal deadlines, and there are no payroll tax
notifications for those years, except for the year 2012/2013, as Form 38 Salaries was notified and
appealed on the legal deadline.

(b) Stamp duty tax

(1) Years from 2003 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax notifications related to the tax period.

(c) General tax on sales

i) Years from 2003 to 31 August 2023

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 11 of 1991 and its amendments.

(d) Value added tax (VAT)

(1) Years from 2003 to 31 August 2023

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.
Registered for VAT on 8/3/2021
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35. Tax position (continued)
35.5  Future and Nations Company “S.A.E”

(a) Income tax:

The Company has not been notified of the inspection from inception until now, and the tax return is
being prepared and submitted on the legal deadlines, except for the years 2010/2015/2016/2017, as
the estimated Form No. (19) was issued, and the forms were appealed on the legal deadline, and the
dispute was referred to the Internal Committee. The dispute for the 2010 was issued to reduce the tax
due from the Company, and the tax was paid and settled.

(b) Salaries Tax:

(1) Years from 2009 to 2015

The Company was inspected, and the salaries tax was paid for that period.
(i) Years from 2016 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and the tax is paid on the legal deadlines.

(c) Stamp Duty Tax

The Company has not been notified of the inspection since inception until now, and the tax is paid on
the legal deadlines.

(d) Value added tax (VAT)

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.
35.6  Upper Egypt for Educational Services “S.A.E”

(a) Corporate income tax

(i) Years from 2009 to 31 August 2023

Tax returns were submitted on the legal deadline, and the Company was not notified of the inspection
during those years, except for 2010, as tax differences amounting to (EGP 16,178) were assessed and
fully paid, and delay penalties are being settled in accordance with the Overriding Law, and from
2017 to 2019, notification was given of the preparation of inspection documents.

(b) Salaries tax
(i) Years from 2009 to 2015

Assessment was conducted based on the decision of the Dispute Resolution Committee, and the
amount was settled and fully paid.

(i) Years from 2016 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadlines, and it has not been notified of any tax forms
during those years.
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35. Tax position (continued)

35.6  Upper Egypt for Educational Services “S.A.E” (continued)

(c) Stamp duty tax

(1) Years from 2009 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax notifications related to the tax period.

(d) General tax on sales

i) Years from 2009 to 31 August 2023

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 11 of 1991 and its amendments.
(e) Value added tax (VAT)

(i) Years from 2009 to 31 August 2023

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.

35.7 Badr University “S.A.E”

(a) Corporate income tax:

@) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and it has not received any tax forms' to date.
(b) Salaries tax

(1) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and it has not received any tax forms to date.
(c) Stamp duty tax

(1) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023
The Company did not receive any tax notifications related to the tax period.

(d) Value added tax (VAT)

(1) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and it has not received any tax forms to date.
(e) Withholding tax

@) The University's records were inspected from the date of inception until 31 August 2014.

The University’s records were not inspected from 1 September 2014 until 31 August 2023.
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35. Tax position (continued)

358 Canadian Columbia International School “S.A.E”
(a) Corporate income tax

(i) Years 2008 and 2009

The Company was inspected for the corporate income tax for the years 2008 and 2009, and the final

assessment was made on the Company based on the reservation form 9 and the payment was made in
full.

(i) Years 2009 and 2010

The Company was inspected for corporate income tax for the years 2009 and 2010, and the payment
was made in full.

(iii) Years 2011 and 2012

The Company was inspected for tax on corporate income for the years 2012 and 2011, and the dispute

between the Company and the competent authority was referred to court, and the dispute is still
ongoing.

(iv) Years 2013 and 2014

The Company was inspected for the corporate income tax for the years 2013 and 2014. The Company

was notified of the estimated Form No. 19, and it was appealed and no payment has been made to
date. k v

(v) Years from 2015 until 2019

The Company has not yet been inspected to date, and it submits the tax returns at the specified tax
dates and the tax is paid based on the tax return.

(b) Salaries tax

(i) Years from 2008 to 2015

The salaries tax was assessed, the inspection was made, and payment was made in full.

(ii) Years from 2016 until 2019

These years have not been inspected, and no claims have been received from the Authority.
(c) Stamp Duty Tax

) Years from 2008 until 2017

The Company was inspected, it was notified of Form No. 3 Stamp Duty, and the taxes due from the
Company were paid.
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35. Tax position (continued)

358 Canadian Columbia International School “S.A.E” (continued)
(d) Real estate taxes

(i) Years from 2013 to 2018

The Company was notified of the assessment of the tax due, amounting to EGP 1,263,033, and part of
the tax was paid at an amount of EGP 360,000.

359  Universal Company for Educational Investment “S.A.E”
(a) Corporate income tax:
) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and it has not received any tax accounting
during those years.

(b) Salaries tax

) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax accounting related to the tax period.
(c) Stamp duty tax

(i) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax accounting related to the tax period.
(d) Value added tax (VAT)

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.
35.10 Universal Company for Educational Services “S.A.E”

(a) Corporate income tax:

1) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadline, and it has not received any tax accounting
during those years.

(b) Salaries tax
@) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax accounting related to the tax period.
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35. Tax position (continued)

35.10 Universal Company for Educational Services “S.A.E” (continued)
(c) Stamp duty tax:

(i) Years from 2021 to 31 August 2023

The Company did not receive any tax accounting related to the tax period.

(d) Value added tax (VAT):

The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.

36. Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023 against banks represented in letters of
guarantee arising from the normal activities of the Company that are not expected to result in

significant liabilities amounting to EGP 11,376,577 (31 December 2022: EGP 11,376,577).

37. Significant events

- Badr University branch was opened in Assiut Governorate for the academic year 2022/2023,

with 7 colleges, and 1200 students have been accepted.

- The Monetary Policy Committee held four meetings in which it raised the overnight deposit
interest rates and the overnight lending rate by 700 points to 19,25%, 20,25% and 19,75%

respectively. The discount rate was also raised by 700 points to 19,75%.

- The approval of the Financial Regulatory Authority was obtained for the Group’s future
issuance of securitizations in Egyptian pounds of EGP 2 billion, and the first tranche was

obtained of EGP 800 million, during November 2022.

38. Subsequent events

The approval of the Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA) was obtained for the Group’s future

issuance of securitizations , and the second tranche was obtained, at an amount of EGP 700 million,
during the month of November 2023.
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